# Committee of the Whole

Monday, February 8, 2021 at 6:30 P.M.

Banquet Room at Five Points, Washington, 360 N. Wilmore Road, Washington, IL

Mayor Manier called the regular Committee of the Whole meeting of February 8, 2021 to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Aldermen Adams, Blundy, Butler, Cobb, Dingledine, Stevens and Yoder

City Administrator Forsythe, Police Chief McCoy, Attorney Derek Schryer, and

City Clerk Brod

Also present: Deputy Police Chief Jeff Stevens, Finance Director Baxter (remotely), P & D Director

Oliphant, City Engineer Carr, Public Works Director Schone, City Treasurer Dingledine

and Kristy Howell with the Washington Chamber of Commerce

Absent: Alderman Brownfield

### **MINUTES**

- 1. Aldermen wishing to be heard: Alderman Stevens stated that she noticed a lot of questions about the high water bills. She shared that she had seen on the City's Facebook page that the billing period was extended by ten days. Mr. Forsythe explain that the timing of the Christmas Holiday caused the meters to be read four days earlier than regularly scheduled last month and this time there were technical issues with the new software that caused the readings to be done four to five days later which created a gap of a total 10 days that were shifted to this recent bill. Alderman Stevens asked how the readers were read. Mr. Forsythe stated that it is all electronic and done at City Hall. Alderman Stevens asked if this affects people with scheduled bill-pay, and will it even out. Mr. Forsythe assured that it will even out and next month will be shorter than typical and they should see a decrease in their water bills. Mayor Manier shared that the ladies up front were slammed and reached out to a few residents who had extremely high bills and found that they had leaks. Mayor Manier asked Mr. Schone and Mr. Carr for the length of time the system has to read to detect a leak. They confirmed that it has to read for a 24-hour period. Mayor Manier shared that some of the spikes were done in the middle of night and maybe we could look into software to catch these spikes, during this budget cycle. Mr. Forsythe shared that the system will catch spikes and contact homeowners and it even caught a leak at his own home. Alderman Stevens asked for a post saying the billing cycle will be shorter next month. Mr. Forsythe responded, yes.
- 2. City Clerk Brod shared two public comments which are attached to these minutes.
- 3. *Approval of Minutes:* Alderman Cobb moved and Alderman Butler seconded to approve the minutes of the January 11, 2020 Committee of the Whole meeting.

Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

### 4. BUSINESS ITEMS

- A. <u>Chamber of Commerce Update</u>: Chamber of Commerce representative, Brian shared the January numbers; they had 120 business check-ins, 260 total members, and 232 Washington based members. He shared that they had their January ZOOM meeting and discussed new COVID solutions. He also shared that they are using social media posts to help support small businesses. Brian shared that over \$5,000.00 in chamber bucks were redeemed in January. Brian also shared that the Chocolate Crawl is starting and Five Points, Washington is a participant and the event will occur February 8<sup>th</sup>-14th. They are hosting the ISPIRE luncheon soon and nominations for the Washingtonian, Outstanding Business and Business Beautification are due February 12<sup>th</sup>.
- B. <u>Budget Review:</u> Mayor Manier introduced Finance Director Baxter to remotely present the Budget Review for Group 1. A copy of her review is included in these minutes. She shared the new report and explained that the new format helps to keep information more readable and includes account numbers to help make it easy to follow. Ms. Baxter opened the presentation for questions. Alderman Stevens asked if we had any control over IMRF and Social Security. Ms. Baxter replied that it is mandated by the State and there was a slight increase in the State IMRF but Social Security has remained the same for years. A short discussion between Alderman Stevens and Ms. Baxter took place clarifying the amount of the original bond, how much it was for, and what taxes are used to pay off the bond.
- C. <u>Budget Portal Training Presentation</u>: Ms. Baxter provided a visual presentation, showing the budget portal for city staff. This new software portal will replace the system that was used for the last 20 years. Ms. Baxter noted that the passwords and details will be ready for everyone the Wednesday before the next council meeting. She will also send out a link, username and password for everyone to access the portal. Ms. Baxter stated that the actual funds, that include revenue, will be shared on Friday. Ms. Baxter then provided the presentation which included navigation details.
- D. Website Updates and Considerations: City Administrator Forsythe presented the need to update the City website. He shared that Communication Specialist Maureen Lyons will help facilitate this and that funds have been set aside for this. Mr. Forsythe noted that the new site would be more accessible to public and this is a key tool used by staff, residents, visitor and developers. The estimated cost would be \$10,500 and we would receive a \$1,000 discount on website tech support. Alderman Adams shared his support for this. Alderman Cobb asked for clarification about the discount. Mr. Forsythe stated that it is a one-time discount. Alderman Stevens asked about the staff keeping up the website. Mr. Forsythe shared that staff does keep up the website and it is a primary duty of the new Communication Specialist to help maintain it. Alderman Stevens expressed her support for it. Alderman Cobb asked about codifying the code. Mr. Forsythe said that codifying is separate and he will bring a proposal in the future.
- E. <u>Glass Recycling Considerations:</u> Mr. Forsythe shared that this has been considered previously with mixed reviews and ultimately put on hold due to Covid. Mr. Forsythe shared a quote that estimates anywhere from \$330 per month to \$880 per month. Mr. Forsythe shared that we could start a pilot project because we are not locked into a long-term contract and noted that PDC only picks up the container, not other debris that may be left around it. It has been suggested to put it in a slightly more visible location. Chief McCoy expressed his concern for the Police Department location, stating that it wouldn't be a good idea to have too many people in the area behind the Police Department. Deputy Chief shared that it also has security and environmental concerns and it would be a special trip to go to Police Department location. Deputy Chief Stevens shared that it is not environmentally sound to drive a

SUV to drop off glass because glass isn't economical to recycle and environmental carbon would not be offset. Alderman Cobb noted that there are many unanswered questions such as cost, man hours for clean-up, what do we do if people drop off other or larger items, and do a lot of people in the community really want this? Alderman Adams expressed his agreement with the pilot program to see how people treat it. He also stated that the rules of use need to be clear and if they aren't followed it would need to be removed. Alderman Buter says it should be an ongoing pilot program in case abuse were to happen at a later time. He also noted that rodents could be attracted the area as well. Alderman Butler addressed what he feels is a misconception that this has something to do with PDC. He noted that Waste Management stopped recycling glass because it is not economical to do so. Alderman Butler shared his support to try the program on a trial basis, as long as we are not locked in long-term. Alderman Dingledine, agreed with Alderman Butler and feels if the program is abused it should be stopped immediately. Alderman Dingledine responded to the public comment made about yard waste not included in the waste contract, and stated that it is inaccurate because it is included but requires the user to sign up for it. He went on to share that he is willing to try the program. Alderman Blundy agreed to a short-term trial due to some interest but stated that it needs to be pulled if it becomes a problem. Alderman Stevens stated that she agrees that if it is abused, it should be pulled and she thinks it's a good idea. Alderman Stevens stated that the reason it wasn't taken into consideration earlier is that the minutes reflect the Mayor broke the tie because he didn't believe that we needed to take it to a trial basis and she would like to have the minutes reflect this. Alderman Dingledine asked Alderman Stevens if two people providing comments represent the entire community and he stated that we cannot keep reacting to every case. Alderman Steven noted only two people sent a public comment but opinions are shared on social media. Alderman Adams asked what do we do if a larger store doesn't want it. Mr. Forsythe shared that there are other lots available. Alderman Yoder stated that the container has certain sized slots and wondered if they are more likely just leave a bag by the dumpster instead of putting items into the slots and expressed his interest for the trial, but pull it immediately if it is abused. Mayor Manier agreed. Alderman Adams suggested that we share on social media that if it not respected, we need to pull it.

Storm Water Study: Mr. Carr shared that the previously discussed Washington Estates project that had been presented to Council, had potential for applying for a grant. It was noted that during those discussions the Council consensus was not to do the project but possibly do a city-wide storm water study. After review, Mr. Carr and Mr. Oliphant noticed that the city had budgeted \$500,000 as a local match if any grant opportunities were to arise this year but stated that it is unlikely since we are getting towards the end of the budget. Staff is suggesting that we use the budgeted money to fund a storm water study. Mr. Carr noted that the 50, 75 and 100-year storms are occurring more frequently. Mr. Carr shared that this would allow the City to shift from a reactive phase to a proactive phase and would allow for the determination of why the flooding is happening not just where the flooding is happening. This would also allow the City to look at data driven solutions instead of complaint driven solutions. He went on to share that with Business 24 in the near future, we want to make sure we have our storm water issues ready when the project comes in because rework will magnify the problem. Mr. Carr shared that this will help us prioritize issues. Mayor Manier shared that this helps us avoid spending \$400,000 on one situation but look at the big picture. Alderman Stevens asked if the Capital Improvement Plan suggests this. Alderman Stevens provided favor. Alderman Adams agreed this is needed. Alderman Yoder provided favor. Alderman Dingledine noted that we should have started this a long time ago and this will allow for improvement the City for the long run. Alderman Butler said this is the best way to learn. Alderman Cobb asked if this will fund the whole study or just partial. Mr. Carr stated that we can set this as a maximum. Alderman Cobb said if we are going to start it, we need to do

it right and have a plan going forward with funding and grants so it doesn't stall. Alderman Blundy
shared without it, there isn't a thorough plan so we need this study to move forward.

- 5. Other Business: None provided
- 6. *Adjournment:* At 7:31 p.m. Alderman Cobb moved and Alderman Stevens seconded to adjourn. <u>Motion carried unanimously by voice vote</u>.

Valeri L. Brod, City Clerk

## Valeri Brod

Public Comment

From: Kim <kimwags@hotmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, February 6, 2021 3:33 PM

To: Valeri Brod

Subject: For Public Comment/Committee of the Whole Meeting FEB 8 2021

### To the City Council:

With regards to the existing PDC waste contract, I AM interested in having a container for glass recycling located in Washington. My family has made 4 trips to Pekin to recycle glass since PDC took over the contract. I preferred Waste Management. We were able to recycle our glass curbside and were able to recycle much more plastic with Waste Management. I would also like to say that I believe yard waste should be included in any waste contract in future and open burning banned. As a person with asthma, it is quite frustrating to be unable to be outside or open my windows because of people burning yard waste. For the sake of everyone's health, please ban open burning.

Kim Waguespack Devonshire Estates homeowner

-----

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Visit the following link to report this email as spam:

 $https://us1.proofpointessentials.com/index01.php?mod\_id=11\&mod\_option=logitem\&mail\_id=1612647194-xfAGuwNCu4W0\&r\_address=vbrod\%40ci.washington.il.us\&report=1$ 

### Valeri Brod

From:

Aaron James <aaronbjames@hotmail.com>

Sent:

Saturday, February 6, 2021 2:32 PM

To:

Valeri Brod

Subject:

For Public Comment/Committee of the Whole Meeting

I am commenting on Item 4.E of the Committee of the Whole Meeting 2/8/2021.

I am in favor of the city contracting with PDC to provide a location to drop off glass recycling. I have confirmed with PDC through direct communication with Brian Rhodes, Business Development Manager for PDC, that glass dropped off in dedicated containers will in fact be recycled. It will not simply be trashed. Only glass mixed with other recyclables is trashed because it is not economically feasible to recycle. But, glass in dedicated containers will in fact be recycled.

While there will be extra cost to the city, the need for the container was occasioned by the city's change of contract from WM to PDC. So, it is reasonable for the city to pay for the cost of recycling the glass. The city should budget for recycling.

Thank you,
Aaron James
1413 Austin Ave

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this email as spam.

# Budget Review – Group 1 Misc. Special Revenue and WACC Debt Service

### <u>Audit</u>

- Interest revenue projected for significant reduction due to interest rate decreases.
- In year 5 of a 5-year contract with Phillips-Salmi.
- · Budget slightly decreased from prior year.

### **Liability**

- Interest revenue projected for significant reduction due to interest rate decreases.
- Budget based on current rates projected with a 12% increase. Renewal reflected 8.1% increase with HCC Tokio-Marine. Slight 2% increase compared to prior year Budget.

#### <u>IMRF</u>

- Interest revenue projected for significant reduction due to interest rate decreases.
- Projecting 10% increase over current year considering additional hires in past year. May need to revise pending staffing proposals. Budget is 7.1% increase over prior year Budget.

### Social Security/Medicare

- Interest revenue projected for significant reduction due to interest rate decreases.
- Projecting 7.5% increase over current year considering additional hires and increased wages.
   May need to revise pending staffing proposals. Budget is 7.5% increase over prior year Budget.

### **WACC Debt Service**

- Bond refinanced with South Side Bank due 5/15/29
- 1/4% Home Rule Sales Tax funds the debt service of approximately \$359,000 per year
- WACC has made payments of \$50,000 per year since FY 2010-11 (10 years) and the agreement calls for payments of \$75,000 per year beginning FY 2020-21 (10 years) for total payments of \$1,250,000 toward the \$5,000,000 bond
- Because of revenue reductions due to COVID, the WACC Board requested a delay in the
  payment for FY19-20. The City Council granted this request and the \$50,000 payment was not
  received until September 2020. Therefore, there is no revenue included for FY19-20 and a total
  of \$125,000 is projected for FY20-21, including the first \$75,000 payment due in April 2021.

Audit Fund	(Fund 202, Department 000)			di Salawan - der etc.	office and a second		MINE WESTEROOFFIEL MUNICIPALISM MEMO	Ja
		Actual	Actual	Budget	Est. Act.	Budget	Variance	Variance
Account #	Account Description	FY18-19	FY19-20	FY20-21	FY20-21	FY21-22	(\$)	(%)
Beginning Fund	Balance			45,395	45,251	48,556	4	a tau en charache debalendes in
Revenues and T	ransfers In				T COURT HANDS THANKS	740 344 -4000 34000 0000		
310-1000	Property Taxes	28,848	28,825	29,000	29,000	29,000	-	0.00%
380-1000	Interest Revenue	726	556	500	25	25	(475)	-95.00%
	TOTAL REVENUES	29,574	29,381	29,500	29,025	29,025	(475)	-1.61%
Expenditures ar	d Transfers Out				·			
Operations	<b>建设</b> 的设计。1975年代共和国共和国共和国共和国共和国共和国		H STORY OF THE STO				Address of the Section	
530-2000	Legal Fees	-	277	-	120	200	200	#DIV/0!
530-4000	Professional Fees	26,213	26,100	29,000	25,600	28,000	(1,000)	-3.45%
	TOTAL OPERATIONS	26,213	26,377	29,000	25,720	28,200	(800)	-2.76%
	REVENUE (OVER) UNDER EXPENDITURES	3,361	3,004	500	3,305	825	,	Source Section (Control of Control of Contro
Ending Fund Ba	lance			45,895	48,556	49,381	Emilion (AH) HIS Colon (AU) (AH) — Call (AH) Here Agricones ( ) as ( ) gen g	

Liability Fur	nd (Fund 203, Department 000)		, g \	<u> </u>	Annual or would be be a con-			
Account #	Account Description	Actual FY18-19	Actual FY19-20	Budget	Est. Act.	Budget	Variance	Variance
Account	Account Description	L110-13	F119-20	FY20-21	FY20-21	FY21-22	(\$)	(%)
Beginning Fund	Balance	A Payer Tries	V/Vente	240,216	239,841	255,141		
Revenues and Tr	ransfers In			program, w				
310-1000	Property Taxes	103,482	103,292	100,000	100,000	100,000	-	0%
380-1000	Interest Revenue	3,232	2,580	2,100	300	300	(1,800)	-86%
	TOTAL REVENUES	106,714	105,872	102,100	100,300	100,300		III A COL
Expenditures an	d Transfers Out				ARAMO 1111 Igori			
Operations	H. F. Walley Street Company of the C	130-14	1- <b>q</b> .	==,	****		THE STATE OF THE S	Na Prince
590-1500	Liability Insurance	90,887	80,755	93,000	85,000	95,000	2,000	2%
	TOTAL OPERATIONS	90,887	80,755	93,000	85,000	95,000	2,000	2%
. CO	REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES	15,827	25,117	9,100	15,300	5,300		NO.
Ending Fund Bal	ance			249,316	255,141	260,441		

Account # Account Description	Actual FY18-19	Actual FY19-20	Budget FY20-21	Est. Act. FY20-21	Budget FY21-22	Variance (\$)	Variance (%)
Beginning Fund Balance			368,936	368,257	360,457	у	- MPA
Revenues and Transfers In	ger Maganistic contracts on times				Vi esta de la companione de la companion		
310-1000 Property Taxes	373,027	342,649	345,000	345,000	362,000	17,000	59
340-1500 Property Repl. Tax	13,645	12,993	14,000	14,000	15,000	1,000	79
380-1000 Interest Revenue	5,377	5,426	3,600	200	200	(3,400)	-949
390-1500 Transfer from Water Fund	18,000	16,000	19,000	19,000	20,000	1,000	59
390-2000 Transfer from Sewer Fund	22,000	23,000	24,000	24,000	25,000	1,000	49
TOTAL REVENUES	432,049	400,068	405,600	402,200	422,200	16,600	49
Expenditures and Transfers Out		****		to the section of the spanning space of page			
Personnel	***************************************		· mt Aut				
590-1500 IMRF Payments	324,788	328,599	420,000	410,000	450,000	30,000	<b>7</b> 9
TOTAL PERSONNEL	324,788	328,599	420,000	410,000	450,000	30,000	79
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES	107,261	71,469	(14,400)	(7,800)	(27,800)		
Ending Fund Balance	a de la la companya de la companya		354,536	360,457	332,657		

Social Security/Medicare Fund (Fund 209, Departi	nent 000)						
Account # Account Description	Actual FY18-19	Actual FY19-20	Budget FY20-21	Est. Act. FY20-21	Budget FY21-22	Variance (\$)	Variance (%)
Beginning Fund Balance			314,334	368,257	362,457	n.	Marie at a
Revenues and Transfers In				Way year and a second			
310-1000 Property Taxes	288,490	292,993	295,000	295,000	316,000	21,000	7%
340-1500 Property Repl. Tax	11,269	11,110	11,000	11,000	12,500	1,500	14%
380-1000 Interest Revenue	5,099	4,733	3,500	200	200	(3,300)	-94%
390-1500 Transfer from Water Fund	35,200	36,000	39,000	39,000	42,000	3,000	8%
390-2000 Transfer from Sewer Fund	44,300	45,000	49,000	49,000	52,000	3,000	6%
TOTAL REVENUES	384,358	389,836	397,500	394,200	422,700	25,200	6%
Expenditures and Transfers Out	- total	•				41 minimum ( 184 4 min) v	
Personnel							
590-1500 IMRF Payments	333,674	346,698	400,000	400,000	430,000	30,000	8%
TOTAL PERSONNEL	333,674	346,698	400,000	400,000	430,000	30,000	8%
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES	50,684	43,138	(2,500)	(5,800)	(7,300)		. Militades 15
Ending Fund Balance			311,834	362,457	355,157		Adel

WACC Deb	t Service Fund (Fund 303, Department 000)	»·						-10
Assourt #		Actual	Actual	Budget	Est. Act.	Budget	Variance	Variance
Account #	Account Description	FY18-19	FY19-20	FY20-21	FY20-21	FY21-22	(\$)	(%)
Beginning Fund	Balance		New York	1000				
Revenues and T	ransfers In		areas period, sub-ta-		=	Main and Lagre semantine		
380-9100	WACC Payment	50,000	-	75,000	125,000	75,000	-	0.00%
390-3000	Transfer from General Fund	309,269	357,438	280,500	230,500	283,375	2,875	1.02%
	TOTAL REVENUES	359,269	357,438	355,500	355,500	358,375	2,875	0.81%
Expenditures ar	d Transfers Out	- April - Marie X	MARIE SOUTHER DE RESEA	defections where the foresteen			···· odovo vondome summentata (II.)	11 1999656
Debt Service	e				Au E			
700-1000	Principal	270,000	275,000	280,000	280,000	290,000	10,000	3.57%
700-1500	Interest	89,269	82,438	75,500	75,500	68,375	(7,125)	-9.44%
	TOTAL DEBT SERVICE	359,269	357,438	355,500	355,500	358,375	2,875	0.81%
	REVENUE (OVER) UNDER EXPENDITURES	-			-	-	<u>.</u>	
Ending Fund Ba	lance							